# MARQUETTE UNIVERSITY MEMORANDUM

To:	Michael Lovell, Marquette University President				
	Joel Pogodzinski, Marquette University Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer				
	Marquette University Board of Trustees				
From:	Michael O'Hear, Professor of Law and Chair, Marquette University Police Department Advisory Board				
Date:	May 23, 2023				
Re:	Annual Report of Marquette University Police Department Advisory Board				

This report is respectfully submitted pursuant to § 114 of the Advisory Board's Rules, which requires the Board to "report of its activities" at least once per year.<sup>1</sup>

In brief, the Board met four times during the 2022-2023 academic year. The minutes of all four meetings are attached to this memorandum. The meetings were informative and constructive. Police Department personnel provided extensive updates on the Department's activities and initiatives, as detailed in the attached minutes. Members of the Board provided feedback and suggestions.

Notable topics covered in our discussions included, among others:

- Implementation of proposals emerging from the President's Task Force on Community Safety, e.g., the Department's new Behavioral Health Unit
- The Department's community relations initiatives
- Crime trends in the Department's patrol zone, including a sharp reduction in car thefts
- Disposition of citizen complaints
- Progress in addressing staffing shortages
- Progress toward full implementation of body cameras for officers

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> More specifically, § 144 states, "On at least an annual basis the Advisory Board shall file a report of its activities with the Board of Trustees and with the President, which report shall be publicly available."

# September 20, 2022

A meeting of the Marquette University Police Department (MUPD) Advisory Board was called to order on Tuesday, September 20, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. in Eckstein Hall, Room 255. Due and timely notice of the meeting, an agenda and draft minutes from the previous meeting were provided by email to each member of the Board in advance of the meeting. Notice of the meeting was also posted on the MUPD Advisory Board website. The meeting was open to the public and information about the meeting was available to anyone who requested it.

**Roll Call.** Board members attending the meeting were Michael O'Hear, Chair of the Board and Professor, Marquette University Law School; Dr. Meghan Stroshine, Vice Chair of the Board and Associate Professor in Social & Cultural Sciences, Klingler College of Arts and Sciences; and Christopher Bartolone, Assistant Director for Facilties Services. Non-Board Members attending the meeting included Edith Hudson, MUPD Chief; Jeff Kranz, Assistant MUPD Chief; Carrie Peters, MUPD Data Analytics Specialist; James Hensley, MUPD Lieutenant; and Jeff Kipfmueller, Deputy General Counsel (as legal counsel to the Board).

# Updates on Departmental Activities, Initiatives and Crime Statistics.

- 1. Lt. Hensley provided an update on community engagement:
  - a. <u>Within MUPD</u>: MUPD has created a health and wellness team which helps staff (sworn and civilian personnel) get to a better place—physically, emotionally and spiritually. Also creating a peer support team. MUPD collaborated with MPD to plan to bring in a retired Texas police chief to discuss servant leadership in modern policing, with emotional intelligence, implementing this and changing culture.
  - b. <u>Community at Large</u>: MUPD members participated in a Cop on a Rooftop event last month. MUPD members teamed up with West Milwaukee PD on Miller Parkway to volunteer and raise money for Special Olympics. MUPD formed a team for next month to support a national organization on mental illness. Also working on a "Faith and Blue" event to build community within law enforcement. Also partnering with faith-based organizations to host a community engagement event—a prayer and unity walk to Norris Park for kickball followed by an ice cream social.
  - c. <u>Within the University</u>:
    - i. MUPD is offering safety classes throughout the semester: 1) personal safety and awareness, 2) self-defense, and 3) active shooter.
    - ii. Also started an "Adopt a Hall" program to build relationships between MUPD officers and hall directors, RAs, and student residents.
    - iii. Coffee with a Cop: once a month outside the Brew in AMU.
    - iv. To increase community engagement in a campus setting, MUPD engaged a retired police chief to visit our campus, review our programs, interview many

stakeholders on campus to see how MUPD is doing, and what we can do better. There will be a final report with recommendations soon.

- v. Blue, MUPD's community support dog, was introduced at the end of last semester and has become very popular.
- 2. <u>Safety</u>: Assistant Chief Kranz provided the following updates:
  - a. MUPD has seen an increase in mental health issues in our campus community. The City of Milwaukee is exploring new ways to manage mental health issues, including a small triage facility at 12<sup>th</sup> and Walnut (6 blocks from campus). MUPD is working to get its behavioral health unit online and is in the process of hiring members. Community involvement is needed.
  - b. Marquette implemented new security for its residence halls this semester, in which the lobby doors to all res halls were locked, requiring a card swipe for entry. MUPD has seen some issues which include tailgating into the halls. The change has reduced the number of unauthorized people entering the buildings.
  - c. MUPD is already preparing for the Republican National Convention which will be in Milwaukee in July 2024.
  - d. Over the summer, a campus-wide crisis management drill was held. Many different departments at the university participated.
- 3. <u>Crime on Campus</u>: there was an increase in crime during the spring semester, but numbers are decreasing. MUPD has not seen the violence seen in the spring semester. Changes made due to the Safety Task Force were helpful. Carrie Peters provided the following crime statistics:

Marquette University Police Department January 1 through August 31, 2020/2021/2022						
	2020	2021	2022*			
Crimes Reported:			MUPD	MPD		
Personal Crimes						
Homicide	0	1	0	0		
Robbery	11	6	10	4		
Theft from Person	4	1	1	0		
Assault/Battery	29	55	63	7		
Sexual Assault/Rape	1	2	2	0		
Total:	45	65	76	11		
TOtal.		60	87			
Property Crimes						
Burglary	31	33	12	1		
Thefts (inc. retail)	213	197	218	0		
Motor Vehicle Thefts	11	102	75	19		
Arson	0	0	0	2		
Total:	255	222	305	22		
rotai:		332	32	27		

- i. It is important to note that MUPD began to incorporate MPD's crime statistics into the MUPD patrol zone numbers. Prior to that, we just counted those reported to MUPD.
- 4. Chief Hudson provided an update on the President's Task Force on Safety. In short, 12 recommendations were approved by the ELT for implementation on campus.

- a. <u>Staffing and policing strategies</u>: Hiring remains a challenge for MUPD. Chief Hudson is interested in hiring students who might be interested in law enforcement. MUPD has four 4 vacancies right now and two police aide vacancies. We would like to hire police aides shortly after graduating from high school. MUPD also has Dispatcher and Limo driver openings. MUPD continues its partnership with Near West Side Partners; the Task Force recommended Ambassadors to be on MU campus—we currently have one but are hoping for another.
- b. <u>Environmental Design</u>: MUPD will have a portable lighting system in certain offcampus areas. MUPD has also ordered additional cameras, but supply chain issues remain; delivery is estimated in March 2023. Additional lighting is also being installed at the Dental School. A speed bump has been installed on 16<sup>th</sup> St. by the pedestrian crossing near MUPD.
- c. <u>Communications and Outreach</u>: University Relations is updating MUPD web pages and creating signs.
- d. Discussion: Dr. Stroshine asked about CIT (crisis intervention) training. AC Kranz indicated that all officers are CIT-trained (and all new ones will be, too). A question was also asked about what Task Force recommendations are working: lighting, new positions will be helpful, behavioral health unit will be helpful once staffed.

Public Comments: None

Other Business: None

Next Meeting Date: To be determined, likely the week after Thanksgiving.

Adjournment: The Chair concluded the meeting and adjourned at 2:52 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey M. Kipfmueller Deputy General Counsel

## November 29, 2022

A meeting of the Marquette University Police Department (MUPD) Advisory Board was called to order on Tuesday, November 29, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. at the MUPD, and via Microsoft Teams. Due and timely notice of the meeting, an agenda and draft minutes from the previous meeting were provided by email to each member of the Board in advance of the meeting. Notice of the meeting was also posted on the MUPD Advisory Board website. The meeting was open to the public and information about the meeting was available to anyone who requested it.

**Roll Call.** Board members attending the meeting were Michael O'Hear, Chair of the Board and Professor, Marquette University Law School; Dr. Meghan Stroshine, Vice Chair of the Board and Associate Professor in Social & Cultural Sciences, Klingler College of Arts and Sciences; Christopher Bartolone, Assistant Director for Facilities Services; Amyah Brooks, Marquette University Student Government (MUSG) representative; and Lindsey St. Arnold Bell, Associate Director for the Near West Side Partners. Non-Board Members attending the meeting included Edith Hudson, MUPD Chief; Ruth Peterson, MUPD Captain; Carrie Peters, MUPD Data Analytics Specialist; James Hensley, MUPD Lieutenant; Joe Irwin, MUPD Lieutenant; Kevin Conway, Associate Director of University Communication; and Jeff Kipfmueller, Deputy General Counsel (as legal counsel to the Board).

<u>Consideration of Minutes of the September 20, 2022 Meeting</u>. A minor correction was suggested, and the Board members unanimously adopted the revision.

# Updates on Departmental Activities, Initiatives and Crime Statistics.

- 1. <u>MUPD Survey</u>: Chief Hudson reported that a survey had been recently completed within MUPD and that efforts will be made to address concerns raised in the survey. Action items include improving internal communications, providing more feedback opportunities for the team, and improving internal climate, consistent with Marquette's Guiding Values.
- 2. <u>Community Engagement</u>: Capt. Peterson highlighted some recent/upcoming initiatives with MUPD participation:
  - a. Toy Drive for Penfield Children's Center
  - b. Shop with a Cop: Police shop with local kids from the West Milwaukee area.
  - c. Coffee with a Cop and Cocoa with a Cop (first time) at the AMU Brew
  - d. Horses will be on campus next week outside the AMU.
  - e. Faith and Blue Event kickball in October. Law enforcement groups join faith based organizations, followed by fundraising NAMI walk.
- 3. <u>MUPD accreditation, training and programs</u>: Lt. Hensley provided updates:
  - a. MUPD is in the process of applying for accreditation through the Wisconsin Law Enforcement Accreditation Group (WLEAG) a voluntary law enforcement accreditation program. Less than 11% of Wisconsin law enforcement agencies are accredited by this group. UW-Madison is currently the only university law enforcement agency with WLEAG accreditation.

- b. MUPD in-service training will be conducted in January 2023.
- c. Recently, MUPD brought in a retired police chief from Texas who provided training in servant leadership for MUPD command staff and some MPD personnel. Servant leadership philosophy promotes leadership from within, supporting employees and making leaders at every level of the department. There are 10 principles two of the most important are listening and empathy. When you deal with people, implementing these principles makes for better outcomes. MUPD has utilized these principles for years, and this is a formalization of this philosophy in MUPD.
- d. Blue, MUPD's community engagement dog, continues to be very popular around the university.
- e. Adopt-a-hall: volunteer program in which an MUPD officer adopts a single hall. We now have at least two officers for each hall on campus. This promotes getting to know officers, making residents more comfortable with police, etc.

Marquette University Police Department January 1 through October 31, 2020/2021/2022							
	imes Reported: 2020 2021	2024	2022*				
Crimes Reported:		2021	MUPD	MPD			
Personal Crimes							
Homicide	0	1	0	1			
Robbery	14	11	11	4			
Theft from Person	6	2	1	0			
Assault/Battery	38	84	85	7			
Sexual Assault/Rape	1	7	2	0			
Total:	59	105	99	12			
TOLAI.		105	111				
Property Crimes							
Burglary	34	40	17	1			
Thefts (inc. retail)	290	307	286	1			
Motor Vehicle Thefts	20	132	103	22			
Arson	0	1	0	2			
Tatal	344	400	406	26			
Total:		480	432				

4. Crime Statistics: Carrie Peters provided the following crime statistics:

\*2022 includes data for incidents that occurred in the MUPD patrol zone that were reported to MUPD, MPD, or both, categorized by reporting agency per Uniform Crime Reporting protocols. MPD's calls for service within the MUPD patrol zone were not included in previous years' data.

- 5. <u>Citizen Complaints</u>
  - a. There is an MUPD Advisory Board rule that there must be regular updates regarding citizen complaints.
  - b. There were three complaints filed in the last year one harassment complaint, one unnecessary physical interaction and one that an MUPD Officer failed to take action. All three were determined to be unfounded.
- 6. Miscellaneous Topics
  - a. The Chair asked for an update on bodycams. Chief Hudson indicated that MUPD applied for a significant grant for bodycams, and received it. MUPD is developing the

policy and will share more details with the Board. MUPD is planning for a soft launch in March/April, with formal implementation this summer.

- b. Naloxone vending machines have been proposed by MUSG for the AMU and in each residence hall. There is a nonprofit which provides them free of charge. MUPD will follow up.
- c. Chief Hudson reported that, as part of the Task Force on Community Safety, MUPD has purchased two large, portable, external lighting units. These will be deployed to areas which have criminal activity as improved lighting can deter crime.
- d. MUPD has been approved to hire a crisis worker/clinician to work with people suffering from mental illness, homelessness, etc. MUPD is spending between 5,000 and 10,000 minutes per month on such incidents/people. Ideally, the unit will start in January 2023. It will be one shift/day, but MUPD wants to expand it to 24/7, ideally.
- e. Safety alert texts: Parents can now sign up and receive text safety alerts. They can see safety alerts on the Eagle Eye app already, but this is another way for them to be informed.
- f. LIMO program. Vans will look different and an app will be used to request LIMO rides and see where the LIMOs are in real-time. Recent MUPD hiring efforts for drivers have been successful.
- 7. Public Comments: None
- 8. Other Business: None
- 9. <u>Next Meeting Date</u>: tentatively Tuesday, February 21 at 2:30 pm. Location TBD.
- 10. Adjournment: The Chair concluded the meeting and adjourned at 2:55 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey M. Kipfmueller Deputy General Counsel

#### February 21, 2023

An in-person meeting of the Marquette University Police Department (MUPD) Advisory Board was called to order on Tuesday, February 21, at 2:31 p.m. at Eckstein Hall, Room 355 at the Marquette University Law School. Due and timely notice of the meeting, an agenda and draft minutes from the previous meeting were provided by email to each member of the Board in advance of the meeting. Notice of the meeting was also posted on the MUPD Advisory Board website. The meeting was open to the public and information about the meeting was available to anyone who requested it.

**Roll Call.** Board members attending the meeting were Michael O'Hear, Chair of the Board and Professor, Marquette University Law School; Dr. Meghan Stroshine, Vice Chair of the Board and Associate Professor in Social & Cultural Sciences, Klingler College of Arts and Sciences; Chris Bartolone, Assistant Director for Facilities Services; Amyah Brooks, Marquette University Student Government (MUSG) representative; and Lindsey St. Arnold Bell, Associate Director for the Near West Side Partners. Non-Board Members attending the meeting included Edith Hudson, MUPD Chief; Jeff Kranz, Assistant Chief of MUPD; Ruth Peterson, MUPD Captain; James Hensley, MUPD Lieutenant; Kevin Conway, Associate Director of University Communication; and Jeff Kipfmueller, Deputy General Counsel (as legal counsel to the Board).

<u>Consideration of Minutes of the November 29, 2022 Meeting</u>. Such minutes were approved unanimously.

#### Updates on Departmental Activities, Initiatives and Crime Statistics.

- 1. <u>Safety Task Force</u>: Chief Hudson and her team provided updates on some of the initiatives made by the Safety Task Force:
  - a. <u>Portable Lighting/Camera Systems</u>: Two of these units have been delivered to MUPD and they will be placed in areas of higher crime activity. MUPD is currently experimenting with them and working through some connectivity issues.
  - b. <u>Eagle Express</u>: This new student transportation system went live in January. There were some glitches in the mapping/routing but those are being addressed. One complaint has been that the new system does not allow drivers to pick up students who flag down the limos. MUPD experimented with adding another van just for this purpose, but there was very little usage. Since launch, the average wait time has been reduced from nine minutes to five minutes. Ridership is down from 1,000 passengers to around 700 to 800 passengers. The service operates from 5:00 p.m. to 3:00 a.m. Ridership is comprised almost entirely of students, although it is available to faculty/staff, as well.
  - c. <u>Behavioral Health Unit ("BHU")</u>: MUPD's implementation of this new unit is up and running and is close to 100% operational. MUPD has hired a full-time civilian BHU employee, and that person is already responding to calls. The BHU will start out with providing coverage for the day shift, but we may stagger hours in order to include some nighttime hours, as well. Ideally, this unit will be able to provide some on-call work, too. The goal of the BHU is to assist with appropriate matters including mental illness and homelessness, provide referrals, provide follow-up and assist with long-term solutions.
  - d. <u>Naloxone</u>: Naloxone is the generic form of NARCAN, which can reverse the effects of an opioid overdose. Marquette is proceeding with the placement of approximately 20 free NARCAN boxes at multiple areas on campus, e.g., our residence halls, the Alumni

Memorial Union. To date, MUPD has never had to use NARCAN on a student/MU affiliated person, but it is frequently used in Marquette's extended community.

- e. <u>Direct Patrol Missions</u>: Recent crime spikes have necessitated MUPD activating Direct Patrol Missions in certain areas. This means that MUPD will add visible intensive patrols in certain geographical areas where more crime is occurring, as a way to quickly reduce crime in those areas.
- 2. <u>Crime Statistics/Trends</u>: Assistant Chief Kranz highlighted some crime statistics, comparing 2021 to 2022:
  - a. Robberies: 16 in 2021, 18 in 2022 (including 5 reported by the Milwaukee Police Department ("MPD");
  - b. Theft from persons: 2 in 2021, 1 in 2022;
  - c. Assault and battery: 99 in 2021, 103 in 2022;
  - d. Sexual Assaults: 8 in 2021, 2 in 2022;
  - e. Burglaries: 49 in 2021, 22 in 2022;
  - f. Thefts: 369 in 2021, 342 in 2022;
  - g. Motor Vehicle Thefts: 161 in 2021, 116 in 2022; and
  - h. Arson: 1 in 2021, 0 in 2022.
- 3. Departmental Activities:
  - a. <u>Cocoa with a Cop</u>: MUPD partnered with MPD to host an on-campus event outside of the AMU. It was an evening event and MPD brought two horses from its Mounted Patrol Unit. The Brew provided cocoa and cookies. It was a hit, with a huge crowd. Lt. Hensley reported that we will do this again before exams in May. And, apparently Blue, MUPD's community outreach dog, did not like the horses.
  - b. <u>MUPD Hiring</u>: Captain Peterson reported that hiring remains a challenge. MUPD currently has four open police officer positions, three open communication officer positions, two open police aide positions and two open public safety officer positions. The number of students interested in careers in law enforcement continues to decline. MUPD will be attending upcoming recruiting events at MATC and MSOE.
  - c. <u>Blue's Birthday Party</u>: Event will be held on March 7 at the AMU. MUPD is soliciting donations for the Backpack Program and the Bridge to the Future Fund. Blue's birthday is on 2/22/2022.
- 4. <u>Miscellaneous Topics</u>
  - a. Dr. Stroshine asked about the recent announcement by Kia/Hyundai about software updates relating to vehicle thefts. This should improve the problem, and it's a free fix, but the update can only be performed at Kia/Hyundai dealers.
  - b. Ms. St. Arnold Bell asked about catalytic converter thefts on campus. MUPD indicated this is happening in Milwaukee, but not in the Marquette area.
  - c. MUPD reported that there is a new crime trend in the area smashing vehicle windows and looking for firearms (e.g., at events at the Fiserv Forum). Last year, citywide, there were thousands of guns stolen from parked cars.
  - d. Mr. Conway asked for an update on bodycams and Chief Hudson indicated that MUPD is still on target for a soft launch in late April.
- 5. <u>Public Comments</u>: None
- 6. <u>Other Business</u>: None

- 7. <u>Next Meeting Date</u>: tentatively April 25, 2023 at 2:30 pm. Location TBD.
- 8. <u>Adjournment</u>: The Chair concluded the meeting and adjourned at 3:11 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey M. Kipfmueller Deputy General Counsel Marquette University

## April 25, 2023

An in-person meeting of the Marquette University Police Department (MUPD) Advisory Board was called to order on Tuesday, April 25, at 2:32 p.m. at Eckstein Hall, Room 204 at the Marquette University Law School. Due and timely notice of the meeting, an agenda and draft minutes from the previous meeting were provided by email to each member of the Board in advance of the meeting. Notice of the meeting was also posted on the MUPD Advisory Board website. The meeting was open to the public and information about the meeting was available to anyone who requested it.

**Roll Call.** Board members attending the meeting were Michael O'Hear, Chair of the Board and Professor, Marquette University Law School; Dr. Meghan Stroshine, Vice Chair of the Board and Associate Professor in Social & Cultural Sciences, Klingler College of Arts and Sciences; Chris Bartolone, Assistant Director for Facilities Services; Amyah Brooks, Marquette University Student Government (MUSG) representative; and Lindsey St. Arnold Bell, Associate Director for the Near West Side Partners. Non-Board Members attending the meeting included Edith Hudson, MUPD Chief; Jeff Kranz, Assistant Chief of MUPD; James Hensley, MUPD Lieutenant; Carrie Peters, MUPD Data Analytics Specialist; and Kevin Conway, Associate Director of University Communication.

## Consideration of Minutes of the February 21, 2023 Meeting. Such minutes were approved unanimously.

# Updates on Departmental Activities, Initiatives and Crime Statistics.

## 1. Community Outreach and Engagement

- a. On May 10, the Department will be sponsoring a nearly day-long event in the spirit of "Coffee with a Cop." The event will begin at 11:30 outside the Student Union with football bowling. At 3:30, the Milwaukee Police Department's mounted patrol will make an appearance. They will ride around campus and then hang out on the west side of the AMU for a couple of hours, giving students an opportunity to interact with the horses. Cookies and iced tea will be provided. Then, at 6:00 pizza will be served.
- b. When Milwaukee hosts an upcoming state tournament for police cadet teams, MUPD will provide a group to help with assessment of the cadets.
- c. The week of May 14 will be National Police Week, including a memorial ceremony. Members of the Board were encouraged to provide an extra greeting to MUPD officers they encounter that week.
- 2. Accreditation: MUPD's materials have been submitted. Review is pending.
- 3. <u>Body cameras</u>: MUPD now has the necessary equipment. In May, a "beta group" of officers and a supervisor will begin using the equipment in the field. It is expected that a department-wide rollout will occur by the fall. Policies will be presented to the Board at its next meeting. Video will be available to the public to the extent required by state open records laws.
- 4. <u>Behavioral Health Unit</u>: BHU is now active and regularly working with individuals experiencing behavioral problems. As an example, there was a person with whom MUPD had 22 contacts in January alone. The BHU engaged with this person and helped to connect him with services. There have been no more contacts since then.

5. <u>Hiring</u>: Four open officer positions may soon be filled. Four offers have been made to individuals contingent on a background check.

## 6. Citizen Complaints

- a. MUPD presented its semiannual report on citizen complaints pursuant to Board rules.
  - b. There have been five citizen complaints dating to January 2021. All were investigated and determined to be unfounded.
    - In 2021, there was a complaint of excessive force and a complaint of harassment or unfair targeting.
    - In 2022, there were two complaints arising from separate incidents at a hospital. In the first, the complaint charged an officer with failing to properly secure a prisoner who was receiving health treatment. MUPD determined that no rules had been violated but provided additional training for the officer. In the second incident, an employee of the hospital attempted to interfere with the search of a subject who had been taken to the hospital for treatment. The employee complained that the search was unlawful and that excessive force was used in removing the employee from the room. MUPD determined that the search was lawful and that no excessive force had been used.
    - In 2023, an officer dropped off a homeless individual at a shelter at the individual's request. The shelter complained that MUPD had violated the shelter's protocols, which require advance notice before a dropoff. No violation of MUPD rules was found, but the officer was provided additional training on the shelter's protocols.
- 7. <u>Eagle Express</u>: One area of student concern with the Eagle Express system has been the inability to flag down shuttles. MUPD has tried to address this concern by utilizing a special van to pick up flagdowns. MUPD notes that ridership numbers have bounced back to where they were before the introduction of a new app at the start of the year. Ms. Brooks highlighted a few areas of ongoing student concern, including wait times late at night, unreliability of arrival time estimates, and drivers leaving after a dropoff without waiting to make sure that the student gets safely inside. MUPD indicated that it appreciates the feedback and is meeting regularly with the app vendor to address concerns.

Marquette University Police Department January 1 through March 31, 2021/2022/2023						
	2021	2022		2023		
Crimes Reported:		MPD	MUPD	MPD	MUPD	
Personal Crimes						
Homicide	1	0	0	0	0	
Robbery	2	4	5	4	5	
Theft from Person	1	0	1	0	0	
Assault/Battery	19	4	21	5	27	
Sexual Assault/Rape	0	0	1	0	2	
Tatal	23	8	28	9	34	
Total:		3	6	4	3	

8. Crime Statistics

Property Crimes						
Burglary	18	0	3	0	23	
Thefts (inc. retail)	56	0	71	0	85	
Motor Vehicle Thefts	14	8	35	3	18	
Arson	0	1	0	0	0	
T ( 1	0.0	9	109	3	126	
Total:	88	118		129		

In presenting the above data, MUPD personnel made the following observations:

- In February, an individual who is believed to be responsible for many of the burglaries so far this year was arrested.
- MUPD has given away 20 "clubs" (antitheft devices for motor vehicles) so far this year, which may help to account for the sharp reduction in motor vehicle thefts.
- Although the data indicate an increase in assault/battery offenses, there have been no MU-affiliated victims other than a very small number of incidents in which MUPD officers were victims.
- MUPD has successfully cleared the great majority of the robbery offenses for which it has had primary responsibility.

**Public Comments**: None

Other Business: None

<u>Next Meeting Date</u>. The Chair will be in touch with Board Members in July to schedule the next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael O'Hear Chair, MUPD Advisory Board